
MEMORANDUM

To: DDA Board of Directors
From: Rob Bacigalupi, Executive Director
Re: March 18, 2016 Board Meeting & Miscellaneous
Date: March 15, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 2B - CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE RADIO 
CENTRE PHASE III AGREEMENT
Enclosed is a memorandum from City and DDA Counsel Lauren Trible-Laucht regarding a minor 
amendment to the Radio Centre 3 Agreement.  This agreement, which was approved by the DDA Board 
at your October 16, 2015 meeting, establishes a cost for Socks Construction to build the Park Street re-
strooms.  The only change is the relocation of the restrooms to the south side of the walkway to accom-
modate utilities.  I recommend that the DDA Board of Directors authorize the Chair and Secretary to 
execute an amendment to the agreement with Lake Street Development, LLC, originally autho-
rized on October 16, 2015, which authorizes the relocation of public facilities as described in the 
February 29, 2016 communication from the City Attorney, such amendment subject to the ap-
proval as to form by the City Attorney and as to substance by the Executive Director.

AGENDA ITEM 3C - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT REPORT
Jean Derenzy will provide a report at the meeting.

AGENDA ITEM 4A - CONSIDERATION OF TRANSFERRING DONOR FUNDS AND A $25,000 
ROTARY CHARITIES GRANT TO THE TRAVERSE CITY ARTS COMMISSION FOR THE BRYAN 
CROUGH MEMORIAL
The City Commission, at their February 16, 2016 meeting, approved the Traverse City Arts Commis-
sion’s request for the Bryan J Crough memorial, which is enclosed.   The City Commission voted unan-
imously in favor of authorizing the memorial at the Park Street Entrance to the Hardy Garage, which 
will be under construction this year and completed in the Spring of 2017.  As you know, we led an effort 
to raise a $25,000 match for a $25,000 Rotary Charities grant for this purpose.   As of today, we have 
raised $25,680 with a donation coming in just today!  With the City Commission approval of the project, 
I have requested the funds from Rotary Charities which we hope to get by the end of the week.  We’d 
like to transfer the funds to the City’s Traverse City Arts Fund so that they can proceed with commis-
sioning the work.  Therefore, I recommend that the DDA Board of Directors authorize staff to trans-
fer to the City of Traverse City Arts Commission fund, the $25,000 Rotary Charities grant, along 
with all donor receipts collected to date, totaling $25,680, for the Bryan J. Crough Memorial.

AGENDA ITEM 4B - CONSIDERATION OF AMENDING FARMERS MARKET RULES
Enclosed is a memorandum from Special Projects Coordinator Nick Viox describing changes to the 
Farmers Market rules recommended by the Farmers Market Advisory Committee that would accomplish 
four things:

• Clarify the regional limitation grandfather clause
• Clarify the number of wine vendors allowed in the market
• Require vendors to be parked and ready by a specified time
• Update where vendors can park

1



Miscellaneous Memorandum
Page �  of �2 4

I recommend that the DDA Board of Directors amend the Farmers Market Rules as described in 
the memorandum from Special Projects Coordinator Nick Viox dated March 15, 2016.

AGENDA ITEM 4C - CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST FROM TART TO USE THE OLD TOWN 
PARKING GARAGE FOR THE RECYCLE A BICYCLE EVENT DURING SMART COMMUTE 
WEEK
Enclosed is a request from Don Cunkle from TART to use the ground level of the Old Town Parking 
Garage from 1 p.m Friday on May 29 through 9 p.m. Saturday, May 30, 2015. 
Parking staff has reviewed this and finds it acceptable.  This is, in part, a partnership with TART associ-
ated with Smart Commute Week, which we have been involved with for many years.  Parking Adminis-
trator Nicole VanNess has indicated, however, that as the Old Town Garage becomes more and more uti-
lized, a day will come when we cannot afford to give up the parking, even for a day and a half on a 
weekend.  For this request, I recommend that the DDA Board of Directors authorize the use of the 
ground level of the Old Town Parking Deck on May 29, 2015, after 1 p.m. to 9 p.m. on May 30, 
2016 for the Sixth Annual Recycle a Bicycle Swap event to be managed by the Traverse Area 
Recreational and Transportation Trails (TART) organization as described in their proposal dated 
February 18, 2016, provided that TART provides proof of insurance naming the City of Traverse 
City and the DDA as additional insured and signs a hold harmless waiver stating they are respon-
sible for any injury or loss that might occur, and further subject to final approval by the City 
Clerk’s office.

AGENDA ITEM 4D - CONSIDERATION OF AMENDING THE PARKING LEASE FOR LOT H 
As you recall, last month the DDA Board tabled this item due to other unresolved issues with the land 
owner.  We now feel those issues have been resolved and therefore are asking that DDA Board of Di-
rectors recommend a renewal of the parking lease with Fifth Third Bank as described in Parking 
Administrator Nicole VanNess’s February 13, 2016 memorandum, and further, that the lease be 
transferred to the DDA, as is permitted in the Operation and Management agreement between the 
DDA and City of Traverse City.

AGENDA ITEM 4E - CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF 14 PAY STATIONS 
AND RELATED SOFTWARE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE
In the packet is a memorandum from Parking Administrator Nicole VanNess explaining this item.  
Nicole offers a number of advantages these pay stations offer their low technology single meter cousins.  
One more reason worth noting is they are much more theft proof than the older meters.  I recommend 
that the DDA Board of Directors approve the purchase of 14 multi-space pay stations in an amount 
not to exceed $184,417 with funds available in the Traverse City Parking System fund, and recur-
ring subscriptions billed monthly in the amount of $85 per pay station. 

AGENDA ITEM 4F - CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION RECOMMITTING SUPPORT FOR 
DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY’S ZONING ORDINANCE AND 
MASTER PLAN
Last week, I penned an article, which is attached, about how downtown is the product of long standing 
planning efforts as well as continued healthy debate about the rules of development.  Our mission is in 
part to assist development within the DDA District that promotes the values of the community.  We rely 
on the years of planning and the resulting rules for development that grow out of this continuous plan-
ning.  It is important to both the development community as well as the residents of the City to know 

2



Miscellaneous Memorandum
Page �  of �3 4

what is expected for development downtown.  The process and the rules are never perfect but we should 
honor them while we occasionally make efforts to evolve and improve them.

Recently, a development project spurred debate about Traverse City’s zoning ordinance.  There are rea-
sonable voices on both sides of the discussion, however the current effort to place some portions of the 
zoning ordinance on the ballot goes against the balanced discourse that results in development rules that 
respect the many impacts they have.  It is important for the DDA to support property owners and devel-
opers who simply try to follow the rules the community lays out for them.  To this end, I have included a 
resolution for the Board’s consideration.  If the Board finds this acceptable, an appropriate motion would 
be for the DDA Board of Directors to adopt the Resolution of Support for Development Consistent 
with the City’s Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance. 

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS OF INTEREST
Enclosed is the March version of the Strategic Categories Map and Project Status Report. 

Front Street
FRONT STREET REIMAGINED CROSSWALK - The newly repaired railing has been accepted though 
we will be asking for a discount and a two year warranty. 
200 BLOCK SNOWMELT PROJECT - Bids are out for the project and the City Commission is tenta-
tively scheduled to set a public hearing at their meeting of March 21 meeting.  In order to keep the 
process moving, I am hoping you will be able to have a quick meeting on April 1 to review bids and of-
fer a recommendation to the City Commission. 

Bayfront/River
PINE STREET PEDESTRIAN WAY - Site work has resumed and is expected to be completed by the 
end of May.
FARMERS MARKET PROJECT - As reported last month, we’ve pushed the scheduled construction of 
this project back to Spring 2018 at the recommendation of our consultant to allow more time to fund 
raise.  Meanwhile, the Farmers Market fundraising committee is working on, among other things, a 
naming policy that will help with our fundraising efforts.  I made a presentation to the Kiwanis Club last 
week on this project.

Other
BUDGET PROCESS - After Friday’s Board meeting, I along with staff will be meeting with the City 
Treasurer and City Manager regarding next fiscal year’s budgets.  Look for a set of draft budgets in April 
for your review.
CITY COMMISSION GOALS AND OBJECTIVES - The City Manager led the City Commission 
through a goal setting exercise not unlike Steve Constantin’s paired comparison exercise.  Attached is a 
report from Mr. Colburn detailing the results.   
TRAVERSE CITY WINTER COMEDY ARTS FESTIVAL - As you may have heard, this event, which 
was recently moved to April, has been cancelled for 2016.  The Film Festival will evaluate later this year 
whether they will hold the event in 2017.
MARKET ANALYSIS - Chris Brewer, our consultant, was in town last week to comb the area for in-
sight and data.  At this point, we are targeting the end of May for Chris to come back up to present the 
final report.
DDA LEGISLATION - There is legislation in Lansing that would have a profound effect on our ability 
to conduct business.  The Michigan Downtown Association, which we are a member of, has been track-

3



Miscellaneous Memorandum
Page �  of �4 4

ing this as have some of the larger Michigan DDAs, and our own Chamber.  I will be in Lansing next 
week for the last Governor’s Complete Streets Advisory Council meeting (the council, which I am a 
member of, is disbanding) and plan on meeting with our legislators to discuss protecting our interests.
FARMERS MARKET ADVISORY COUNCIL - Enclosed are the minutes from the February 22, 2016 
Farmers Market Advisory Council meeting including a revised Vendor Audit Protocol.
PARKING SYSTEM UPDATES - Attached is the latest monthly report from Nicole as well as the latest 
parking garage traffic reports.
DTCA BOARD MINUTES - Enclosed are the minutes from the February DTCA meeting.

cc: City Manager
Traverse City City Commissioners

4



 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Friday, March 18, 2016, 8:00 a.m. 

Commission Chambers, Second Floor 
Governmental Center, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City 

www.downtowntc.com 

Information and minutes are available from the DDA Director, 303 East State Street, Suite C, Traverse 
City, MI 49684, (231) 922-2050. If you are planning to attend the meeting and are handicapped requiring 
special assistance; please notify the DDA Director as soon as possible. 

1. Roll Call 

2. Consent Calendar - The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-
controversial items together to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any 
member of the board, staff, or public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed 
therefrom and placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion.  Such requests will be 
automatically respected.  

A. Consideration of minutes for the Regular Meeting of February 19, 2016 (approval 
recommended) 

B. Consideration of authorizing an amendment to the Radio Centre Phase III agreement to 
reflect different placement for public restrooms, which is necessary because of the 
presence of underground utilities (approval recommended) 

C. Consideration of approving Financial Reports and disbursements for the DDA, TIF 2 and 
TIF 97 dated January 31, 2016 and Financial Reports for Traverse City Parking Services 
dated December 31, 2015 (approval recommended)  

3. Chairperson’s Report 

A. Community Development Report 
B. Comments or Questions regarding Written Reports 

4. Executive Director’s Report 

A. Consideration of Transferring donor funds and a $25,000 Rotary Charities grant to the 
Traverse City Art Commission for the Bryan Crough Memorial 

B. Consideration of amendments to the Farmers Market Rules 
C. Consideration of Request from TART to use the Old Town Parking Garage for the 

Recycle a Bicycle event during Smart Commute Week  
D. Consideration of amending parking lease for Lot H 
E. Consideration of authorizing purchase of 14 Pay Stations and related software installation 

and maintenance  
F. Consideration of a Resolution recommitting support for development projects consistent 

with the City’s Zoning Ordinance and Master Plan 

5. Public Comment 

6. Adjournment 

The Traverse City Downtown Development Authority does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its 
programs or activities.  The DDA Executive Director has been designated to coordinate compliance with the non-discrimination requirements contained in Section 
35.107 of the Department of Justice regulations.  Information concerning the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the rights provided thereunder, are 
available from the DDA office.         

Posted 3-16–20165

http://www.downtowntc.com


DRAFT

Minutes 
Traverse City Downtown Development Authority 

Regular Meeting 
February 19, 2016 

Commission Chambers, Second Floor 
Governmental Center, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City 

Chuck Judson called the meeting to order at 8:02 a.m.  

1.   Roll Call 

Present: Leah Bagdon-McCallum, Allison Beers, Mayor Jim Carruthers, Steve Constantin, 
John DiGiacomo (departed @ 8:46 a.m.), T. Michael Jackson, Jeff Joubran, Chuck 
Judson, Gabe Schneider 

Absent: Harry Burkholder Bill Golden, Rick Korndorfer 

2.  Consent Calendar. Motion by Jackson, seconded by Constantin that the consent portion of 
the agenda be approved as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

a. Approval of minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 15, 2016. 

b. Approval of Financial Reports and disbursements for the DDA, TIF 2 and TIF 97 
dated December 31, 2015, and Financial Reports for Traverse City Parking 
Services dated November 30, 2015.  

c. Approval of the Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2014-2015.  

            3. Chairperson’s Report 
 a. Community Development Report 

i. Jean Derenzy Report 
1. Park Place Hotel  

a. Questions regarding timeline and funding 
2. 145 W. Front Street purchase option 
3. Corridors - 8th Street Charette 

b. Comments or Questions on Written Reports 
i. Bacigalupi reviewed memorandum 

1. 2015 Annual Report 
2. Market Study 
3. Documents regarding upcoming projects 

5. Executive Director’s Report 
a. Consideration of lease renewal for Fox River Traditions, Inc. a.k.a Scalawags 

6



DRAFT

DDA Board of Directors 
February 19, 2016 
Page !  2

i. Motion by Jackson, seconded by Beers that the DDA Board of Directors 
authorize a renewal of lease with Fox River Traditions, Inc. for five years 
with a 2% increase in rent after the third year. Motion carried unanimously. 

b. Consideration of authorizing expenditure of $140,000 for Phase Two of the Uptown 
Riverwalk Connection. 

i. Motion by Constantin, seconded by Schneider that the DDA Board of 
Directors authorize the expenditure of up to $140,000 with funds available in 
TIF 97 capital outlay for Phase Two of the Uptown Riverwalk Connection. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

c. Consideration of authorizing appointing three members to the Farmers Market Advisory 
Board. 

i. Motion by Bagdon-McCallum, seconded by Constantin that the DDA Board 
of Directors confirm Chair Judson’s nomination of Tricia Phelps, Meghan 
McDermott, and Gary Jonas to the Farmers Market Advisory Board each 
for three-year terms. Motion carried unanimously. 

d. Consideration of renewing agreement for Project Fresh offered at the Farmers Market. 
i. Motion by Bagdon McCallum, seconded by Joubran that the DDA Board of 

Directors authorize the Executive Director to execute the Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services Farmers Market Nutrition 
Program (WIC Project Fresh) WIC Market Master Agreement and 
Certification for the 2016 season. Motion carried unanimously. 

e. Consideration of amending Hardy Garage free parking program. 
i. Motion by Constantin, seconded by Jackson that the DDA Board of 

Directors concur with staff’s recommendation and limit free parking on 
evenings and weekends offered at the Hardy Garage to November 15-
January 15 starting November 15, 2016. Motion carried unanimously. 

DiGiacomo departed the meeting at this time. 

f. Consideration of amending parking lease for Lot H.  
i. Motion by Constanin, seconded by Carruthers that the DDA Board of 

Directors table this item to be addressed with additional items related to the 
Fifth Third property. Motion carried unanimously.  

g. Consideration of authorizing service order to engineer the 200 Block East Front 
streetscape/snowmelt project. 

i. Motion by Constantin, seconded by Beers that the DDA Board of Directors 
authorize the expenditure of up to $30,860 for the design and construction 
engineering necessary to complete the snowmelt system installation in the 
north side of the 200 block of Front Street from Prince-Lund Engineering, 

7



DRAFT

DDA Board of Directors 
February 19, 2016 
Page !  3

PLC, with funds available in the TIF 97 Professional Services line item. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

h. Review latest Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Capital Improvement Program draft  

6. Public Comment 
a. Carol Hale, 240 Washington Street #12, commented on 200 block of Washington Street, 

Boardman River erosion, metered parking, and the charette on Eighth Street as it relates 
to the DDA District. 

7. Comments from Staff and Board of Directors 
a. Staff Comments 

i. Downtown website, 2015 Annual Report, Traverse City Restaurant Week, DDA 
Executive Director’s Record Eagle column, neighborhood meetings with parking, 
and the Sara Hardy Downtown Farmers Market reconstruction project. 

b. Board of Directors Comments 
i. Prioritization exercise will be completed by the DTCA Board of Directors and 

report back to the DDA on results. 

8. Adjournment.  The meeting officially adjourned at 9:21 a.m.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Colleen Paveglio 
Marketing & Deputy Director

8



DDA Financial Report
January 31, 2015 January 31, 2016 Budget 15-16 as 

Approved
Budget 15-16 
with 
Amendments

% of Budget Budget Variance

REVENUE   

Property Taxes 65,480 108,505 70,000 70,000 155.0% -38,505

Interest and Dividends 257 1,892 200 200 945.8% -1,692
Miscellaneous 2,592 0 0 0 - 0
Rents and Royalties 33,430 35,130 45,000 45,000 78.1% 9,870

Administrative Services 351,311 417,455 767,377 767,377 54.4% 349,922
Prior Year Surplus 0 0 0 - 0

TOTAL REVENUE $453,070 $562,981 $882,577 $882,577 63.8% 319,596

EXPENSES

Payroll Expense 351,268 372,419 581,810 596,810 62.4% 224,391

Health Insurance 26,298 39,336 146,733 146,733 26.8% 107,397
Workers Compensation 6,955 7,134 0 0 - -7,134

Office Supplies 7,514 5,874 9,000 9,000 65.3% 3,126

Operation Supplies 957 0 0 0 - 0
Professional/Contractual 44,138 15,990 78,100 66,534 24.0% 50,544

Communications 2,742 2,708 4,600 4,600 58.9% 1,892

Transportation 1,391 0 2,000 2,000 0.0% 2,000
Lodging/Meals 2,846 2,456 5,000 5,000 49.1% 2,545

Training 1,350 100 2,000 2,000 5.0% 1,900
Community Promotion 1,357 1,471 12,500 12,500 11.8% 11,029

Printing/Publishing 4,154 3,549 7,500 7,500 47.3% 3,951

Insurance & Bonds 1,295 703 1,700 1,700 41.4% 997
Utilities 4,024 3,976 6,600 6,600 60.2% 2,624

Repairs & Maintenance 975 975 2,200 2,200 44.3% 1,225

Rentals 5,287 4,914 8,000 8,000 61.4% 3,086
Legal Expense 2,217 135 5,000 5,000 2.7% 4,865

Miscellaneous 25 0 400 400 0.0% 400
Equipment 3,732 3,009 6,000 6,000 50.1% 2,991

TOTAL EXPENSE $468,525 $464,749 $879,143 $882,577 52.7% 417,828

thru fiscal year⬇
NET INCOME/(LOSS) ($15,455) $98,232 $3,434 $0 58.3%

Payroll & Fringes

January 31, 
2015

January 31, 
2016

Budget 15-16 as 
Approved

Budget 15-16 
with 
Amendments

% of Budget

Payroll Expense 351,268 372,419 581,810 596,810 62.4%

Health Insurance 26,298 39,336 146,733 146,733 26.8%

Workers Compensation 6,955 7,134 0 0 -
TOTAL 384,521 418,890 728,543 743,543 56.34%

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Jim Carruthers 
City Commission, City of Traverse City 

FROM: Traverse City Arts Commission 

RE: 
Mary Bevans Gillett, Chair c;Jt 4, /'{ ;J jl_ .;j 
Bryan Crough Memorial 

DATE: February 8, 2016 

On behalf of the Traverse City Arts Commission, we are pleased to present our first request to 
the Traverse City Commission for approval of a public art project. Specifically, the Traverse City 
Arts Commission requests approval to proceed with the Bryan Crough Memorial- a work of 
innovative art to be integrated into public space adjacent to the proposed Radio Centre Ill 
development. A review of the project's concept, location and preliminary budget, per the Public 
Art Program Master Plan, follows. We request your approval of the plan as presented as well as 
approval to expend funds from the Public Art Trust Fund and to initiate the Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) process. 

Concept 

The Arts Commission proposes commissioning and installing a substantial work that is original, 
of high quality and perceived as 'deserving' as a signature piece of art for downtown Traverse 
City, while also memorializing Bryan Crough. Since this will be the first installation undertaken 
since the Arts Commission was established, it will also stand as a visible launch to Traverse 
City's new public art effort. 

With your approval, the Traverse City Arts Commission will work with the City Manager, City 
Attorney and City Staff to post an RFQ seeking proposals by open invitation from artists 
throughout the country. The process will continue as defined in the Public Arts Program Master 
Plan as approved by the City Commission last November. 

The following points are essential to the Traverse City Art Commission's vision for this work and 
will be included in RFQ communication to all prospective artists: 

• Bryan was a catalyst, a connector and a community builder. We believe this work should 
spark the same essence of energy, creativity and engagement. It should be interactive, 
innovative, responsive, whimsical and would attract viewers and community to engage 
with it. 

• The work is envisioned to be an original, modern sculpture that interprets the attributes 
noted through media proposed by the artist. It is not planned as a traditional bronze 
sculpture or rendition of Bryan Crough's likeness. 

• The sculpture will be of a size that is harmonious to the surrounding environment yet 
substantial to serve as a signature piece for downtown and the City of Traverse City. 

33



• The work will be installed in downtown Traverse City, integrated with the new Radio 
Centre Ill development adjacent to frequent walking, biking and auto traffic on South 
Park Street (see site below).This will be a highly visible location with frequent daily 
visitors. 

• The artwork is envisioned as either a stand-alone piece installed close to a sidewalk or, 
potentially, installed onto the new building at street level. 

• The sculpture will remain outside and uncovered in perpetuity (unless the sculpture is 
removed through the procedure described in the Public Art Program Master Plan). 
Therefore, it must be sufficiently durable to withstand exposure to Northern Michigan 
weather conditions. 

• The sculpture will be open to the public and will not be protected by a barricade, fence, 
or enclosure, nor patrolled by staff or personnel. Therefore, it must be safe, strong and 
not vulnerable to vandalism or high maintenance. 

• A small plaque will be placed near the artwork, noting the memorial and Bryan Crough's 
role in Traverse City. This plaque will be of similar nature to those commemorating 
similar memorials (i.e. Larry C. Hardy Parking Deck, Perry Hannah, Con Foster, Sarah 
Hardy Farmers Market). 

• Implementation timeline will correlate with construction of Radio Centre Ill. Completion 
is anticipated in Spring 2017 with public dedication in June 2017. 

Site 

The Traverse City Arts Commission recommends the Bryan Crough Memorial artwork be 
created for and installed permanently in public space adjacent to Radio Centre Ill, currently in 
development with Socks Construction at 113 South Park Street. 

Key points: 

• This site is directly across from Sorrelina restaurant and the alley between the 200 block 
of State and East Front Streets, and adjacent to Radio Centre II to the south, the Larry C. 
Hardy Parking Deck to the east, and Taproot Ciders/Radio Centre I to the north. It is just 
one block from West Grand Traverse Bay and steps from the Park Place and the heart of 
downtown Traverse City (see location and site plan, attached). 

• When the Radio Centre Ill development is completed, the site will be in close proximity 
to public restrooms and a pathway to the parking deck as well as new retail, residential 
and office space. This will be a highly visible location with frequent daily visitors and 
robust walking, biking and auto traffic along South Park Street. 

34



• The site allows integration into a new build for coordinated use of resources as well as a 
location that is significant to downtown and connects with Bryan. The group visualized 
an independent work near the sidewalk/public pathways or a piece installed onto or 
integrated with the new building as noted above. 

• The Arts Commission considered several sites and gathered input from stakeholders, the 
DDA, city planning and engineering staff, public art experts and the developers. The Art 
Commission's public input session on 1/5/2016 also gathered community insight into art 
located downtown. 

• Socks Construction is in support of this location and is willing to modify plans to 
incorporate and/or complement this artwork into privately owned portions of the 
development, if needed. 

Funding/Budget: 

• $50,000 has been budgeted for this project. This includes artist fees, installation, 
maintenance, RFQ/proposal process, city expenses and related costs required to bring 
this project from proposal through completion. 

• $50,000 has been secured through private philanthropy. Rotary Charities of Traverse 
City committed a $25,000 grant designated toward artwork in memory of Bryan Crough. 
Rotary Charities funding was matched with an additional $25,000 in private donations. 
Private donation are currently being held by the DDA and will be transferred to the Art 
Trust Fund. Rotary Charities funds will be dispersed by June 30, 2016. 

• Due to philanthropic support, no public funds are required to implement this project. 

Next Steps & Timeline 

With City Commission approval of this concept, site and budget, the Traverse City Arts 
Commission will continue implementing this project following the guidelines set forth by the 
Public Arts Program Master Plan. A preliminary timeline follows. Please note that dates are 
contingent on Radio Centre Ill development and construction schedules, and may need 
modification as the projects proceed. 

• February-March 2016: City Manager, City Attorney & City Staff prepare RFQ to artists 
• April-June 2016: Artist proposals reviewed by artist selection panel; finalists selected. 
• July-August 2016: Finalists invited to site visit & to submit maquettes for review; panel 

recommends artist to the Arts Commission 
• September 2016: Artist engagement and contract with the City of Traverse City 
• October 2016- May 2017: Creation and implementation of artwork 
• June 2017: Installation, dedication and celebration 

35



Radio Centre Ill 

Radio Centre I 

113 South Park Street 

R .ADIO C E N T R E HI 
• SOCKS D EVEL.OPMENT • • • ROB Iilli A. YvON ARCH ITECT 

I Radio Centre II 

/ 

Bryan Crough Memorial 
Location 

36



TO:   Rob Bacigalupi, DDA Executive Director 
CC:  Chuck Judson, DDA Chairperson 
FROM:  Nick Viox, DDA Special Projects Coordinator 
DATE:  March 15, 2016 
SUBJECT: Farmers Market Rules 2016 

Over the past few months, the Farmers Market Advisory Board has been working 
diligently to improve the rules of the Sara Hardy Downtown Farmers Market for 
the 2016 season. The DDA Board has already approved the new payment 
structure proposed by the Advisory Board as well as the limited exemption clause 
for vendors outside of the historical 7 county radius, but there was just a few more 
pieces that needed some fine tuning. These pieces, that are in red font in the 
attached rules, are detailed below:  

• An update Vendor Audit Protocol that includes additional forms for on-site 
vendor visits and calls for one member of the Farmers Market Advisory Board 
to be present during the visits.  

• Parking Map Information Changes - Vendors will no longer be provided 
spaces in Lot Z. 

• Wine Vendors will now allow for a limit of 2 vendors on Saturdays and 3 on 
Wednesdays. We had 3 Vendors on Wednesdays last year and that was 
incredibly successful.  

The Advisory Board is meeting this month to discuss the Entertainment Vendor 
section, as well as to review the possibility of having a pilot program that allows 
non-profits at a limited capacity at our market. We are hoping to bring this 
amendment to the DDA Board next month.  

 


  MEMORANDUM

37



! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

  

The Sara Hardy Downtown Farmers Market (the Market) is operated 
by the Traverse City Downtown Development Authority (DDA) and is 
managed by SEEDs (The Market Manager).  The purpose of the 
Market is to create a sales venue for local area farmers, 
provide opportunity for consumers to purchase quality farm-grown 
goods, to provide a community gathering place, and to promote 
and stimulate economic development and create traffic in the 
Downtown area. 

!  

The Market takes place on Wednesdays and Saturdays in season on 
dates established every year by the Downtown Development 
Authority.  The Market begins by 7:30 a.m. on Saturdays, 8:00 
a.m. on Wednesdays, and ends at 12 noon.  The DDA shall set 
dates based upon recommendation by the Farmers Market Advisory 
Board.  

The Market takes place in parking lot “B” at the southwest 
corner of Cass and Grandview Parkway in downtown Traverse City, 
though it may be temporarily moved to accommodate other events 
in that space. 

!  

Only Vendors registered and approved in accordance with these 
Rules may sell at the Market.  Applications are available by 
contacting the DDA office and must be submitted by APRIL 11.  
Applications shall be sent to the attention of Nick Viox.  
Applications will be required annually.  Any dispute of a 
determination made by the Market Manager and/or DDA Staff may be 
appealed to the Farmers Market Advisory Board. 

All Vendors must be within the Historical 7 County Area (Grand 
Traverse, Antrim, Kalkaska, Wexford, Leelanau, Benzie, and 
Manistee Counties)ATTACHMENT A 

All Vendors outside of the 7 Counties, please refer to the 
Limited Exemption to see if it applies.  

   I. Mission 

   II. Time and Place 

  III. Who can sell 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968538



! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

If space is limited preference will be determined by the 
following four factors:  

•Product Balance 
•Timing of Acceptance 
•Proximity to the Market (as mentioned above) 
•Booth assignment process (detailed in Section V) 

The Market Manager and DDA Staff shall determine acceptance into 
the Market at their sole discretion. Any appeals of this 
decision may be brought to the Farmers Market Advisory Board. 
This Board will make any ultimate decision on these matters and 
its decision shall be final.   

Those not accepted because of space limitations will be placed 
on a waiting list and will be made aware of any openings 
throughout the season. 

!  

All of the products sold at the Market must be grown or produced 
by the Vendor offering them for sale. No reselling will be 
allowed. Reselling is defined as offering or sale of any product 
not grown or produced by the Vendor. All products and Vendors 
must be compliant with any applicable USDA, MDA and Department 
of Health regulations. Vendors are defined by the following 3 
categories: 

CATEGORY 1: RAW AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS 

Vendors must abide by all applicable federal, state and local 
health regulations.  In addition, they must adhere to federal 
guidelines on all labels. 

All items that the Vendor will bring to the Market must be 
listed on the attachment to the application. If there are any 
additions to this list, an amendment must be made prior to the 
item being brought to Market. The Vendor must provide proof of 
planting stock purchase or equivalent documentation to have the 
amendment approved. Approval is at the discretion of the DDA 
Staff and the Market Manager.  

  IV. What can be sold 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968539



! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

I. Fruits, Vegetables, Cultivated Mushrooms, & Grain: 
Must be grown 100% by that Vendor.  

II. Animal Agriculture: Includes meats, eggs, honey, and 
milk. 100% of the animals must be owned and cared for 
by that Vendor.  

III. Nursery Items: Nursery items include annuals, 
perennials, and cut flowers. These items may not be 
purchased by the Vendor ready for retail. No 
wholesaling is allowed. All nursery items must abide 
by the additional guidelines listed below: 
I. The nursery/greenhouse must have production 

facilities specifically for growing nursery/stock 
plants.  

II. The nursery/greenhouse must produce plants from 
seed, cuttings, plugs, and/or bare root stock in 
small containers, which are then grown to the 
finished size.  

III. The nursery/greenhouse will have an annual 
production plan complete with order confirmations 
for seed, cuttings, liners/plugs, bare root, 
small containerized stock, and supplies such as 
soil, pots, fertilizers, etc., along with 
invoices on file. 

IV. Vendors selling winter-hardy nursery stock items, 
including trees, shrubs, perennials, mums, fruit 
trees, berry plants, rose bushes, vines, herbs 
and bulbs must produce both a Nursery Stock 
Growers License or a Small Scale Growers License 
as well as a Nursery Stock Dealer Market License. 
These licenses can be found on MDARD’s website.   

CATEGORY 2: VALUE ADDED AGRICULTURAL ITEMS 

Priority in this category will be given to Vendors based on the 
following criteria (NOTE: The DDA acknowledges the constraints 
of our local growing area when it comes to value-added products. 
This will be taken into account during the evaluation process.): 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968540



! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

I. Vendors that grow all of their ingredients 
II.Vendors that use their own grown ingredients along with 

locally farmed ingredients. 
III.Vendors that source all ingredients from locally farmed 

ingredients. 

All Vendors in this category will be evaluated by the Farmers 
Market Advisory Board before acceptance to ensure the best 
Market blend. 

Vendors must abide by all applicable federal, state and local 
health regulations.  In addition, they must adhere to federal 
guidelines on all labels.  

All items that the Vendor will bring to the Market must be 
listed on the attachment to the application. If there are any 
additions to this list, an amendment must be made prior to the 
item being brought to Market. Approval is at the discretion of 
the DDA Staff and the Market Manager. 

Value Added Agricultural Items Include:   

I. Baked Items: (Limit of 8 Vendors)Eligible bread products 
must be baked from dough made by the Vendor. 

II.Soap/Health & Beauty Care Products: (Limit of 4 Vendors) 

III.Value Added Fruits & Vegetables: This includes oils, 
vinegars, preserves, jams, dried fruits, juices, salsas, 
etc. 

IV.Cheese: Priority is given to those who own their own their 
own animals, then to those who source exclusively from 
local farmers. 

V. Small Wine Vendors (Maximum of 3 Vendors on Wednesdays, 2 
Vendors on Saturdays) 

I. Eligible wineries must: 

A. Complete the Michigan Liquor Control Commission (MLCC) 
Application for Farmers’ Market Permit (https://
www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968541

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/LCC-3020_Farmers_Market_Permit_Application_08-13_432699_7.pdf


! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

LCC-3020_Farmers_Market_Permit_Application_08-13_43269
9_7.pdf) 

i. Tastings and sales shall be limited to an 
exclusive area that is well-defined and clearly 
marked and under the control of the permit 
holder. This perimeter must be approved by the 
Market Manager before the vendor attends market. 

ii.Tastings to each customer shall not exceed 3 
services of 2 ounces or less of wine in any 
period of 24 hours 

iii.The Market Manager will sign the Permit upon 
acceptance for submission to the MLCC 

iv.Make fewer than 5,000 gallons of wine per year 
at all locations 

B. Wineries shall provide a certificate of liquor 
liability insurance in the amount of $1 million per 
occurrence naming the City of Traverse City and the 
Traverse City Downtown Development Authority as 
additional insured.   The certificate shall evidence 
dates of coverage that are inclusive of the dates 
alcohol is being sold or served.  

C. Wineries shall submit copies of server training 
certification for each server who will be present 
sampling wines at the market. In the event that there 
are any substitutions, the Market Manager must be 
notified and be provided with certifications for new 
servers. 

D. Wineries will check photo identification of ALL 
customers sampling or purchasing wine and will not 
serve wine to anyone under the age of 21 years old, in 
accordance with federal law. 

E. Wine vendors are responsible for providing their own 
receptacles for tastes and must clean up their space 
after.  

CATEGORY 3: WILDCRAFTED/FORAGED ITEMS 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968542

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/LCC-3020_Farmers_Market_Permit_Application_08-13_432699_7.pdf


! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

Because it is difficult to ascertain where items are foraged, it 
is required that the Vendor reside within the Historical 7 
County Area.  

Vendors must abide by all applicable federal, state and local 
health regulations.  In addition, they must adhere to federal 
guidelines on all labels.  

All wildcrafted/foraged items, whether fresh or dried, must be 
100% gathered by the Vendor. Examples include  wild mushrooms, 
fish, & wild leeks.  

All items that the Vendor will bring to the Market must be 
listed on the attachment to the application. If there are any 
additions to this list, an amendment must be made prior to the 
item being brought to Market. Approval is at the discretion of 
the DDA Staff and the Market Manager.  

VENDORS THAT FIT INTO MORE THAN ONE OF THE THREE CATEGORIES 
LISTED ABOVE MUST COMPLETE TWO FORMS: 

I. APPLICATION FOR ALL APPLICABLE CATEGORIES 
II. MULTI-CATEGORY FORM (ATTACHMENT B)  

!  

Assigned spaces will be allocated based on duration of 
attendance, timing of application  submission, and product 
balance. If the Vendor is unsure of their Market attendance at 
the time the application is submitted, they should contact the 
DDA office at least one week in advance to confirm attendance 
and duration of Market attendance. This will help ensure a space 
on the Vendor’s desired Market dates.  If no such contact is 
made, spaces are not guaranteed and will be given out on a first 
come, first serve basis. 

If a Vendor is aware that they will not be able to attend a 
Market date that they had previously reserved, they must notify 
the DDA Office at least 1 week prior to non-participation by 
emailing nick@downtowntc.com or calling 231.922.2050. Failure to 
notify the DDA of an absence may result in the Vendor being 
billed for that date.   

  v. Booth assignments & Rates 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968543

mailto:nick@downtowntc.com


! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

There are three stages to the booth assignment process: 
 1.) Application 
 2.) Acceptance into the Market 
 3.) Attendance and duration of attendance communicated to 
the DDA at least one week before the first Market the Vendor 
plans to attend. This will reserve a space for the Vendor. 

If all three steps are not completed, then a space is not 
guaranteed at Market. Booths that aren’t reserved will be 
assigned by the Market Manager on the day of the Market on a 
first come, first serve basis. 

Vendors’ booth set up may not impede foot traffic and the 
walkway. The Market Manager shall monitor set up to ensure it is 
appropriate and/or if it needs to be altered. 

Vendors are offered the following four options for Booths:

Booth  Space(s) Space(s) for  
Vehicle(s)

Bronze
1 (On the South Side 
of the lot, by the 

river)

None Provided (Refer 
to Parking Map in 
Section VIII)

 Silver 
1 (The southern and 
center rows of the 

lot)

1 in Lot B (Next to 
booth Space)

Gold 2 (1 Silver and 1 
Bronze Booth)

1 in Lot B (Next to 
booth Space)

Platinum 2 (2 Silver Booths) 2 in Lot B (Next to 
booth spaces)

PLEASE NOTE: THESE ARE NOT 10’X 10’SPACES. THEY ARE 8’ SPACES WIDE 
AND A MINIMUM OF 8’ SPACES DEEP. 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968544



! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

The rates for the Market are listed in the tables below:

DAILY RATE

Booth Size Wednesdays Saturdays

Bronze $15 $20

Silver $20 $25

Gold $30 $40

Platinum $60 $70

PREPAYMENT OPTION: Wednesdays & Saturdays

Booth Size May - June  
(due May 7)

July - August  
(due July 2)

Sept. - Oct.  
(due September 3)

Bronze $170 $255 $215

Silver $235 $330 $300

Gold $405 $515 $515

Platinum $795 $965 $1025

PREPAYMENT OPTION: WEDNESDAYS ONLY

Booth Size May - June  
(due June 1)

July - August  
(due July 6)

Sept. - Oct.  
(due September 7)

Bronze $40 $100 $80

Silver $60 $140 $120

Gold $100 $220 $200

Platinum $200 $460 $440

PREPAYMENT OPTION: SATURDAYS ONLY 

Booth Size May - June  
(due May 7)

July - August  
(due July 2)

Sept. - Oct.  
(due September 3)

Bronze $120 $155 $135

Silver $160 $190 $180

Gold $280 $295 $315

Platinum $520 $555 $585

Booth Size

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968545



! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

!  

Vendors must be parked and within their booth by the time 
requested on their acceptance letter. Vendors not parked by then 
forfeit their space for that Market day.  Vendors may set up 
early but must cease sales at 12:30 p.m.   Vendors may not 
remove their vehicle from their stall until 12:00 p.m. and must 
completely vacate their space by 1:00 p.m. on Wednesdays and 
1:30 p.m. on Saturdays.  The Vendor space must be left clean and 
free of debris.  Only one vehicle may park in each Vendor stall.  
Any other vehicle Vendors bring must be parked in accordance 
with Section 8 of these Rules. 

Payment will be picked up the day of the market by SEEDs. If you 
select to prepay, your payment will be due the date indicated in 
the table in Section V.  

!  

Compliance with these Rules is essential to a successful Farmers 
Market.  Honesty from all Vendors is expected and required. Any 
Vendor found in violation of these Rules by the Market Manager 
or by DDA Staff will be subject to further review, which may 
result in a citation, suspension, or expulsion from the Market. 

The Farmers Market Advisory Board, or its designee, from time to 
time may make Vendor Audits.  Based on such a Vendor Audit, the 
Board may request the Market Manager to issue a citation. The 
Vendor Audit Protocol is outlined in ATTACHMENT D.  

If the Vendor is not satisfied with the outcome of the review or 
the Vendor Audit Protocol process, they may appeal to the 
Farmers Market Advisory Board, who will meet within two weeks to 

FOR ANY DATES IN WHICH THE MARKET MOVES TO THE OLD TOWN PARKING DECK, BOOTH 
FEES WILL REVERT TO THE 2013 SEASON STRUCTURE OF $20 ON WEDNESDAYS & $25 ON 
SATURDAYS. THE PREPAYMENT SCHEDULES REFLECT THIS. 

PREPAYMENT OPTION: SATURDAYS ONLY 

May - June  
(due May 7)

July - August  
(due July 2)

Sept. - Oct.  
(due September 3)

Booth Size

  vI. Market Day Activities 

  VII. Compliance with rules 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968546



! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

hear the appeal. Decisions of the Farmers Market Advisory Board 
shall be final. 

Grievance/Complaint forms can be found at the SEEDs Office at 
the Farmers Market.  

!  
Accessible parking is crucial to serve customers of the Farmers 
Market. Parking is based upon booth selection. Platinum Booths 
will receive two parking spaces. Gold and Silver Booths will 
receive one parking space. Trailers are considered to be a 
vehicle. 

Bronze booths and additional vehicles may park in any space in 
Downtown Traverse City subject to meter rates and any other 
restrictions posted in the lot. It is encouraged that vendors 
are mindful of limited customer parking and allow space for them 
to park. Vendor vehicles four in violation of this section will 
be subject to ticketing. 10 hour meters are outlined in the map 
below in purple. A nearby parking garage is outlined in blue.  

  VIII. Parking 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968547



! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

!  

!  

Individuals or groups that wish to be Entertainment Vendors will 
be permitted to participate for one hour during each Market day. 
A maximum of four Entertainment Vendors may participate on any 
given Market day. One Entertainment Vendor my perform at any 
time.  

Entertainment Vendors will be assigned a time slot and stall on 
a first come, first serve basis. Times and locations are 
provided by the Market Manager. The Market Manager reserves the 
right to deny any entertainer or entertainment group based on 
noise and space restrictions.   

Entertainment Vendors must abide by the City of Traverse City’s 
Street Performers Ordinance, Chapter 864. They will be allowed 
to display signage and receive tips. The performance will effect 
their chances for participation next year.   

  IX. Entertainment & Non-Profit Vendors 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 49685

FARMERS MARKET LOT

48



! SARA HARDY DOWNTOWN FARMERS MARKET RULES 2016!                                                                                                                        

!  

a. Fowl Feed:  No duck feed or other food for fowl is 
allowed. 

b. Semi Trucks: No semi trucks are allowed. 
c. Peaceful Environment:  in the spirit of a community 

event, any Vendor making a hostile or uncivil 
environment for other Vendors, customers, or market 
staff will be addressed and in some cases removed from 
market. In addition, all Vendors must abide by the 
City of Traverse City’s Noise Ordinance, Chapter 652. 

d. Food Establishment License:  Vendors who sell 
processed foods must contact the Department of 
Agriculture regarding the need to obtain a Food 
Establishment License.  The local MDA can be reached 
at (231) 922-5210. 

e. Trash receptacles are for customers, Vendors must 
remove all of their own trash. 

f. Vendors are not permitted to bring pets to the Market. 

The undersigned, declares and says he/she wishes to be permitted to 
participate in the Farmers Market as stated hereon and that the statements 
made above are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, 

he/she will comply with all provisions of the ordinances of the City of 
Traverse City (hereafter "City") and policies of the Downtown Development 

Authority ("DDA") relative to the Farmers Market, and agrees to hold the City 
and DDA free and harmless from all liability which may be imposed upon them, 
to reimburse the City and DDA for all expenses of litigation in connection 
with the defense of claims as such liability and claims may arise because of 

negligence in its participation in the Farmers Market. The undersigned 
acknowledges that permission to participate in the Farmers Market may be 
revoked if it is determined any information regarding the applicant’s 

participation was not accurately conveyed on this application document or if 
the City's or DDA's ordinances or policies are violated; and by signing, 

waives any claims of liability, financial or otherwise, against the City and 
DDA should permission be revoked. The applicant acknowledges that the City 

and DDA may be required from time to time to release records in their 
possession. The applicant hereby gives permission to the City and DDA to 

release any records or materials received by the city from the applicant as 
it may be requested to do so as permitted by the Freedom of Information Act, 

MCL 15.231 et seq. 

  X. Miscellaneous 

Traverse City DDA (231) 922-2050 
P.O. Box 42, Traverse City, MI 4968549



50



51



52



53



54



55



	
	
Memorandum	

	
Fifth	Third	Bank	is	closing	their	drive-thru	on	N	Union	Street	after	business	on	Saturday,	February	13,	

2016.		They	predict	their	drive-thru	customers	will	transition	to	walk-up	transactions	at	the	Main	Branch	

on	the	corner	of	W	Front	and	Union	Streets.		With	the	recent	closure,	Jeffrey	Wagner,	Vice	President	and	

Regional	Director	of	Fifth	Third	Bank	Corporate	Facilities	is	requesting	two	changes	to	their	current	lease	

which	are	as	follows:		

1. Allow	the	Owner	at	its	sole	expense	to	erect	reserved	parking	signage	for	seven	spaces	to	be	

exclusively	used	by	the	bank	and	their	customers.		

2. Increase	the	maximum	time	allowed	on	meters	from	30	minutes	to	1	hour.	

	

I	recommend	the	DDA	Board	approve	and	execute	Amendment	1	to	the	Lot	H	Lease	subject	to	content	
approval	by	the	City	Attorney.	

	

To:	 Rob	Bacigalupi,	DDA	Executive	Director	

From:	 Nicole	VanNess,	Parking	Administrator	

Date:	 February	12,	2016	

Re:	 Lot	H	Lease	-	Amendment	 	

56



57



	
	
Memorandum	
	

	

	

We	installed	12	pay	stations	to	replace	coin	only	meters	in	May	of	2015.		The	original	proposal	

called	for	the	pay	stations	to	be	installed	on	Front	Street	and	5	small	lots.		Prior	to	installation,	I	

recommended	that	Front	Street	was	not	an	ideal	location	to	introduce	this	technology	to	our	

community,	and	determined	an	installation	in	5	lots	ranging	in	size	would	allow	for	easier	

adjustment.		The	device	swap	was	met	with	both	positive	and	negative	feedback	as	we	worked	

through	the	transition	period.		After	initial	implementation,	there	was	continuous	negative	

feedback	within	the	first	four	months	which	consisted	of	difficulty	seeing	the	display	screen	and	

on-screen	prompts;	learning	curve	on	when	and	how	to	pay;	refund	complaints;	wait	time	and	

lines;	and	overall	dissatisfaction	with	the	changeover.		The	complaints	have	significantly	

decreased.		Parkers	are	more	familiar	with	the	locations	of	the	pay	stations	and	how	they	work.		

We	have	decreased	our	collection	time	with	our	enforcement	staff,	have	the	ability	to	track	

usage	and	view	real-time	occupancy	counts,	report	on	financial	and	usage	data,	and	offer	

expanded	payment	methods.							

We	would	like	to	continue	to	deploy	multi-space	meters	to	replace	our	single	space	meters.		We	

would	need	17	pay	stations	for	city	owned	lots	and	17	pay	stations	for	leased	lots.		It	would	be	a	

significant	investment	to	purchase	34	pay	stations.		We	are	still	evaluating	the	exact	locations,	

but	we	have	determined	that	12	pay	stations	would	be	sufficient	to	cover	at	least	4	lots	and	at	

minimum	180	spaces.			

We	received	an	end-of-life	notice	for	Shelby	pay	stations	in	May	of	2015.		These	units	were	the	

first	pay	stations	deployed	by	DPT.	We	have	two	of	these	units	at	Old	Town	Garage	on	the	

ground	level.		Hardware	support	ended	on	December	31,	2015	and	both	software	and	

telephone	support	will	end	on	December	31,	2016.		

I	recommend	that	the	DDA	Board	of	Directors	approve	the	purchase	of	14	multi-space	pay	
stations	in	an	amount	not	to	exceed	$184,417	with	funds	available	in	the	Traverse	City	Parking	
System	fund,	and	recurring	subscriptions	billed	monthly	in	the	amount	of	$85	per	pay	station.		
Upon	final	determination	of	placement,	an	additional	expense	of	roughly	$35	per	sign	will	be	

submitted	in	order	to	denote	space	number.	

	

To:	 Rob	Bacigalupi,	DDA	Executive	Director	

From:	 Nicole	VanNess,	Parking	Administrator	

Date:	 March	14,	2016	

Re:	 Luke	II	Pay	Station	Purchase	

58



The Record-Eagle 03/06/2016

Copyright (c)2016 The Record-Eagle, Edition 03/06/2016 March 14, 2016 7:19 pm / Powered by TECNAVIA

Copy Reduced to 45% from original to fit letter page 

BUSINESS
T R A V E R S E  C I T Y  R E C O R D - E A G L E

Sunday, March 6, 2016 BUSINESS NEWS EDITOR (231) 933-1467

www.record-eagle.com

SECTION  D

A vision for Traverse 
City evolved through 
the 1970s, ’80s and 

’90s. 
The vision was born out 

of fear that the vitality of 
Traverse City’s downtown 
core was fading and being 
usurped by regional sprawl. 
The development of Cher-
ryland Mall, then the Grand 
Traverse Mall, and millions 
of square feet of commercial 
space in between, threatened 
to drain life out of the urban 
core. 

Area leaders convened a 
meeting in the mid ’80s at 
Gilbert Lodge at Twin Lakes 
Park, where they identified 
a vision for a vibrant, mixed-
use downtown. A decade 
later, the city planning com-
mission led a grassroots com-
munity-planning effort for a 
new master plan. That plan, 
approved in 1994, reinforced 
the idea of downtown as a 
regional center with higher 
densities, “in-fill” develop-
ment, and a mixture of uses.

The tenets of this 1994 
master plan ended up in 
the Downtown Development 
Authority’s 1997 develop-
ment plan for the north end 
of downtown, called the TIF 
97 Plan. This plan provided a 
funding mechanism for pub-
lic improvements to support 
the vibrant, denser urban 
core that had been envi-
sioned at Gilbert Lodge and 
in the City’s new master plan. 

As downtown took shape 
in the 2000s we would hear 
from time to time comments 
regarding how projects like 
Radio Centre 1 and 2, the 
State Theatre and River’s 
Edge were serendipitous. My 
predecessor, Bryan Crough, 
would wryly say: “Yes, its al-
most as if there was a plan.” 

The idea of more density 
and filling in unused land 
has been a key component 
of the plan. Most agree that 
some additional density is 
needed to assure downtown 
can grow and evolve. But how 
much height and bulk is ac-
ceptable without destroying 
the character that makes Tra-
verse City such an attractive 
place? This is a question that 
the city planning commission 
and city commission have 
grappled with over the years.

Before 1999, the zoning 
ordinance allowed buildings 
up to 125 feet and 10 stories 
through the lengths of Front 
Street and State Street. An 
ordinance approved in 1999 
created three sub-zones that 
stepped buildings down to-
ward Grand Traverse Bay to 
preserve some water views. 
The sub zones allowed first 
85 feet (but up to 110 feet for 
an “interesting roofline”), 
then 68 feet, then 45 feet 
closest to the bay. Buildings 
above 60 feet required spe-
cial land use approval.

In response to concerns 
about taller buildings, the 
planning commission in 2003 
created a subcommittee that 
studied building heights 
focusing on urban design, 
development economics and 
housing considerations. The 
planning commission ulti-
mately kept building heights 
where they were, but elimi-
nated the interesting roofline 
bonus in lieu of a 100-foot 
limit on height.

Building heights came up 
again in 2009 when the city 
commission created a com-
mittee to study the issue. 
A thoughtful discussion 
engaging both sides of the 
issue again was employed to 
resolve the debate. The com-
mittee ultimately decided to 
leave building height limits 
where they were.

Traverse City: 
It’s almost as if 
there was a plan 

R O B 
B A C I G A L U P I

Local columnist

SEE PLAN PAGE 2D

TRAVERSE CITY — The 
wine tasters have spoken, 
and revealed two simple 

ways for wineries on the 
Leelanau Peninsula to make 
more money: Win awards or 
benefit the local economy.

Consumers in an experiment 
were willing to pay an average 
of $1.58 more for a bottle of wine 
after after learning about the 
awards it had won, said Dan Mc-
Cole, tourism and sustainabil-
ity researcher at the Michigan 
State University AgBioResearch 
Center. Consumers were also 
willing to pay an average of 58 
cents more after learning of 
the local opportunities that the 
wine would create in terms of 
jobs and tourism, he said. 

Awards affect attitudes
Research: Honors, 
local benefits help 
sell area wines
BY DANIELLE WOODWARD
dwoodward@record-eagle.com

Record-Eagle/Tessa Lighty

Marie-Chantal Dalese at Chateau Chantal in Traverse City.

Bottle boost

Record-Eagle/Tessa Lighty

The wine tasting menu at Chateau Chantal in Traverse City.SEE WINES PAGE 2D

TRAVERSE CITY — Manufac-
turers gathered last week to talk 
safety and strategy at the Grand 
Traverse Area Manufacturing 
Summit. 

The area’s second annual man-
ufacturing summit took place 
at the Northwestern Michigan 
College Hagerty Center, 715 E. 
Front St. It exceeded the Grand 
Traverse Area Manufacturing 
Council’s expectations, generat-
ing nearly double the turnout of 
last year’s event.

“Momentum is growing,” said 
Corey Geer, chairman of the 
manufacturing council. “I think 
manufacturers are realizing 
that in northern Michigan we 
have such a good community of 
educators and companies, that 
events like this are great for 
everyone.”

The council formed in 2014 as 
a way for manufacturers in-

crease awareness of the indus-
try and voice their needs, said 
Betsy Williams, a business and 
development training specialist 
at Northwestern Michigan Col-

lege. The goal of the summit was 
mainly just to get manufacturers 
together to share ideas, she said. 

The first half of the morning 
was focused on this year’s theme 

of safety. Companies shared 
safety concerns and policies and 
brainstormed ways to improve.

“The overall theme was really 
important because everything 
starts with safety,” said partici-
pant Nicole Agruda, a lean ana-
lyst at Kennametal Inc. “When 
employees are well and safe, 
they can do their best work.”

Manufacturing summit focuses on safety, growth
M A N U F A C T U R I N G

Area companies 
share their stories
BY DANIELLE WOODWARD
dwoodward@record-eagle.com

Record-Eagle/Danielle Woodward

Manufacturing Council Chairman Corey Geer talks about the 
council’s areas of focus this year.

“I think manufacturers 
are realizing that in 
northern Michigan 

we have such a 
good community 
of educators and 
companies, that 

events like this are 
great for everyone.”

Corey Geer, chairman of 
the Grand Traverse Area 
Manufacturing Council 

SEE GROW PAGE 2D

59



The Record-Eagle 03/06/2016

Copyright (c)2016 The Record-Eagle, Edition 03/06/2016 March 14, 2016 7:22 pm / Powered by TECNAVIA

ing the manufacturing 
field through community 
involvement and grant op-
portunities. This was the 

Inc. “It’s hard to find qual-
ified workers in the area. 
The more we get active, 
the more we can hopefully 

and see what everyone’s 
doing,” Agruda said. “We 
get to share best practices 
and ideas.” 

FROM PAGE 1D

plan
Bacigalupi:  
It’s almost as if 
there was a plan

Traverse City is a very 
engaged community. Nary 
a decision is made with-
out healthy debate with 
opinions on both sides of 
the issue — whatever that 
issue is.

The main crux of a recent 
debate was about build-
ing heights downtown, and 

perhaps to a lesser extent, 
density. Building heights 
and density are controlled 
by zoning regulations. 
Zoning regulations are 
made possible by Michigan 
Public Act 110 of 2006, the 
Zoning Enabling Act. This 
act enables municipalities 
to impose development 
regulations in order to 
protect health, safety and 
welfare while protecting 
private property rights. 
The law prescribes a pub-
lic process that gives all 
sides, including citizens 
and owners of property, 
opportunity to express 
their opinion and interests 

while zoning changes are 
being considered.

Traverse City’s history 
of thoughtful and rational 
discussion about devel-
opment rules and how 
they effect the future of 
our community hope-
fully will continue. We all 
have planned the future 
of downtown to grow and 
improve. If we have a 
disagreement about the 
details, lets discuss it and 
work it out as our history 
dictates.

Rob Bacigalupi is executive 
director of the Traverse City 
Downtown Development 
Authority.

60



Resolution of Support for Development Consistent with the City’s Master Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance

Whereas, the Traverse City Downtown Development Authority exists to promote economic 
development and increase property values, and

Whereas, the City Master Plan provides guidance for development and public improvements 
within the City including the DDA District, and

Whereas the Traverse City Zoning Ordinance regulates development within the City including 
the DDA District, and 

Whereas the Planning Commission has developed, through exhaustive public engagement, the 
current City Plan, and 

Whereas, the City Planing Commission and City Commission have worked, often with the DDA’s 
assistance, to resolve issues regarding zoning ordinance requirements by bringing all sides 
together to fully understand and ultimately resolve the issue to the optimal benefit of the City.

Now, therefore be it resolved that the Traverse City Downtown Development Authority reaffirm 
its support of development projects consistent with the City’s current Master Plan and Zoning 
Ordinance. 

This Resolution was approved by the DDA Board 
of Directors at their meeting of March 18, 2016.

_______________________________________
Rob Bacigalupi, Executive Director

61



Downtown Traverse City Map For Meeting of March 18 2016

3

Warehouse

Front Street

Old Town

Bayfront/River

1. Park Place
2. 124 West Front
3. 145 West Front
4. 305 West Front
5. Grandview Place
6. Hotel Indigo

7. Uptown Riverwalk Connection
8. Garland Street/Pine Street Pedway
9. Farmers Market
A. Reimagined Crosswalk/200 Block Snowmelt
B. Radio Centre 3/Crough Memorial
C. Lot H

1

2

4

5

3

6

7

8
9

A

B

C

62



DDA 2016 Project Status Updates 

March 18, 2016 

PROJECT PHASE STATUS ESTIMATED 
COMPLETION

Park Place Hotel Planning Historic District Comm. decided on Dome TBD
124 W. Front Implement Entitled, in pre-leasing phase Fall 2017
145 W. Front Implement Land purchase due diligence April 2016
305 W. Front Implement Entitled though in litigation TBD
Grandview Place Implement Entitled, in pre-leasing phase TBD
Hotel Indigo Implement Under construction June 2016
Uptown Riverwalk 
Connetion

Implement Partially complete Spring 2016

Pine Street Ped Way Manage Bridge in place end of May 2016
Garland Steetscapes Implement Working to acquire needed land end of June 2016
Farmers Market Planning Fundraising Spring 2018
Reimagined Crosswalk Implement Being fabricated Spring 2016
200 Block Snowmelt Planning DDA reviews on April 1, 2016 June 30, 2016

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



Sara Hardy Farmers Market Advisory Committee Meeting 
Meeting Called to Order by Jan Chapman on February 22nd 9:03 a.m. 
 
Roll Call: Gary Jonas, Reid Johnston, Jan Chapman, Linda Grigg, Lori Buchan, Tim 
Werner (Absent: Nancy Heller, Meghan McDermott, Harry Burkholder, Brenin Wertz-
Roth) 
 
Introductions to the new board members (Gary Jonas present) 
 
Approval of minutes 
 -One correction made from last meeting 
 -Timer Werner made the motion to approve 
 -Lori Buchan seconded the motion 
 -Passed (6 yays, 0 nays) 
 
Introduction to Board of New Members 
 -Gary Jonas present, owner of Little Fleet & vendor of shrub soda at market 
 -Tricia Phelps, reapplied and got accepted once again 
 -Meghan McDermott, not present, works at Groundwork 
 
Monthly Financials 
 -In the green by around $2000 at the end of 2015 
 -No questions 
 
Elections 
 -Up in February 
 -Move to present current slate of positions for renewal for upcoming term by Tim 
Werner 
 -Seconded by Reid Johnston 
 -All in favor (6 yays, 0 nays) 
 -Board positions will stay the same 
 
Vendor Audit Committee 
 -Have discussed the current vendor audit protocol, received advice from Linda 
about her own inspections at her farm, changed the inspection process to be more formal 
 -Last meeting we discussed having amendment lists changes being changed, 
committee thought that it should stay in so that the vendor has a chance to be flexible 
with not growing something they said they would 
 -Vendors should turn in an change to their amendment list 
 -New addition: Board members will be asked to go on vendor audits for a total of 
three people on the visit. (Manager, third party verifier, board member) 
 -Question by Laurie: What if someone has an issue with that? 
 -Answer by Nick: During the stall visit the vendor needs to let us know that they 
have an issue with certain advisory board members and we will find another option.  If 
there isn’t another option, we will proceed ahead 

71



 -Question by Reid: What did we decide for problems with the third party 
verifiers? 
 -Answer by Nick: We will provide the bios of the third party verifiers at the 
beginning of the season to give  
 -Question by Tim: If there is a problem, who decides if it is a worthy problem? 
 -Answer by Nick: Even if it is a personal problem, we see it as legitimate and will 
try to make it comfortable for vendor. Our goal is to make sure the farms we go on make 
sense with an advisory board member who goes 
 -No more questions or comments 
 -Motion by Lori Buchan: “the farmers market advisory board recommends to the 
DDA board an amendment to the Farmers Market Rules to include the Audit Summary, 
Audit Report, & Contesting the Audit document proposed by staff, pending the review 
and approval of the City Attorney” 
 -Seconded by Jan Chapman 
 -Passed in full support (6 yays, 0 nays) 
 
Wine at Market 
 -Email from Benjamin Crow asking about if he could sell wine at Saturday’s 
market 
 -He sold at Wednesday last year and was fairly successful 
 -Currently we only allowed wine sold on Wednesdays, but Saturdays could be an 
option if the advisory board decided to 
 -We originally did just Wednesdays as a pilot project 
 -Farmers will get the first priority 
 -Reid: “I don’t see why its any different than any other value added vendors as 
long as we put a limit” 
 -Nick: “Currently on Wednesdays we have kept it at 3 wine vendors” 
 -Reid: “What are numbers on other value added vendors?” 
 -Nick: “Cheese 4, bread 8, soap 3” 
 -Lori: “What if there is a farmer that comes in the middle of the season who wants 
to come in and there is no space?” 
 -Nick: “Then they are out of luck if the wine vendor has already been promised 
the space” 
 -Lori: Concerned about farmers being turned away if they have more produce 
than they can sell otherwise 
 -Tim: “How many has this happened to in the past?” 
 -Nick: “Very few. We usually turn people away at the beginning of the season 
rather than in the middle of the season. We try to keep one space open for 
accommodating vendors” 
 -Reid: “I think we should allow wine on Saturday with a maximum of 4 vendors” 
 -Gary: “I’d like to see a breakdown of how many of each type of vendor there 
are” 
 -Linda: “Are we going to have wine just at one end or scattered throughout? I 
think there are vendors who would not want to be next to a wine vendor. They might take 
up space in front of the booths and overflow into other booths” 

72



 -Nick: “I would view wine as similar to press on juice with sampling available. 
People would sample and leave. I have accommodated people who don’t want to be next 
to a soap or drink sampling vendor and I’ve made sure to move them. Wednesdays they 
have allocated space. Saturdays we don’t have the flexibility to do that, but I could make 
sure they are near each other.” 
 -Reid: “Was there any issues with people gathering at Wednesdays?” 
 -Nick: “No, we had no issues, but it was early and was on Wednesday” 
 -Jan: “Could we accept one for this year?” 
 -Linda: “I think that would be a good idea” 
 -Nick: “This could be our trial vendor and we could reintroduce the subject during 
the season itself. In July if we have another app come in we will take it into 
consideration. I think wine is a really great component to our agricultural system.” 
 -Reid: “I make a motion for 2 wine vendors at markets on Saturdays” 
 -Time: “I second it” 
 -In favor: Tim, Lori, Jan, Ried, Gary (5 yays)  
 -Opposed: Linda (1 nay) 
 -Passed 
 
Vendor Parking 
 -Lot Z will probably not be available to us this year for vendors to park in 
 -Last year we discussed lot B being closed to customers, but Nick thinks this year 
it could be used for only vendor parking 
 -Linda; “Can it accommodate trucks?” 
 -Nick: “Yes, everybody should be able to park back there” 
 -Linda: “Is there anywhere else?” 
 -Nick: “I’ve looked at every other space and the old town is the closest to go to” 
 -Lot T is free on Saturdays, but used on Wednesday 
 -The chamber lot (C?) is used by employees on Wednesday and is necessary for 
downtown customers on Saturdays 
 -Reid: “What about we set aside 10 spots in Lot B for vendors?” 
 -Nick: “We discussed that last year and I had people who wanted to discuss it 
more. I’d like to reintroduce this issue as a safety concern.” 
 -Linda: “People are going to be confused if there are cars in Lot B and they can’t 
park there” 
 -Reid: “I’m hesitant to take up customer parking. We want them to come to 
market and buy a lot of stuff, so they need the most parking they can” 
 -Jan: “Lot B will be closed when the market is redone, so should we start now?” 
 -Linda; “What is the difference for metered parking downtown versus metered 
parking in Lot B?” 
 -Rob: “Less parking in the 200 block so we don’t want to take up space. More 
parking in the 100 block” 
 -We will not be closing off Lot B, we will encourage them NOT to park in Lot T. 
Nick will tell them where the lots are that have metered parking and how long they are 
allowed to park. Allow the free market to work as it stands. Let vendors know that every 
spot in Lot B they take is taking a customer’s space.   

73



 -Nick will look into making the back area of Lot B a one way space. Nick is 
concerned about how easily that will be made apparent to customers  
 
 
DDA Report by Rob Bacigalupi 
 - History: DDA oversees the farmer’s market.  The DDA is a concept that the 
state of Michigan came up with to help downtowns because in the 70s downtowns were 
struggling to compete with suburbia.  Traverse City DDA formed in 1979 with the 
support of the merchant association who pushed the city to make a DDA to help with 
capital improvements for the downtown.   
 -Mission is to promote economic development in downtown and increase property 
values 
 -Governance: 12 people on board of directors appointed by city commission (the 
mayor is always part of this).  The city commission also approves their budget 
 -The DDA has contracts with two other entities: Merchant Association-DTCA 
(promotes downtown and draws people downtown primarily through events) & Parking 
through the City (integral to the success of downtown) 
 -Farmers market is the only event that the DDA runs 
 -The DDA is working to be more data driven through studies 
 
Beckett and Raeder Update by Rob Bacigalupi 
 -City Commission Wants: Greener, Storm Water Practices, Take out Fewer trees 
(all were taken into consideration) 
 -Fundraising: Total is about $2 million, have $400,000, still have a long way to go 
to reach the goal. Megan Olds is helping find fundraising opportunities 
 -Shooting to be done with fundraising and start project by the Spring of 2018 
 
Jan: Motion to adjourn 
Gary: Second 
All in favor (6 yays, 0 nays) 

74



ATTACHMENT C

�

The Market’s Vendor Audit helps improve the quality and preserve the 
integrity of our Market by verifying that all Vendors are complying 
with the Market’s Rules. The Market wants to ensure that our Vendors 

are selling only products they grow and are honest about their 
ingredient purchases and labeling. This effort helps make sure we have 

fair, honest, high quality markets.  

The Market is excited to get to know our Vendors’ operations more 
deeply, which helps us better educate the public about local and 

sustainable food production. Visiting Vendors in our market enables us 
to know our Vendors’ businesses better, be able to more effectively 

tell the stories of their farms, and enables us to help the public to 
know their farmer, know their food.  

The Vendor Audit Protocol is conducted randomly throughout the Market 
season. All Vendors at the Market are subject to a Vendor Audit. The 

following outlines the 3 Steps of the Vendor Audit: 

STEP 1: BOOTH VISIT 

This part of the protocol will occur on a random market date. 
The Market Manager will introduce the process to the Vendor and 
conduct an audit of the booth. This audit will include taking 
pictures of each item at the market, confirming all state and 
federal guidelines are met, an application & stall comparison, 
and confirming the date and time for STEP 2: Physical Visit.  

STEP 2: PHYSICAL VISIT 

This part of the protocol will take place 5 - 10 days after Step 
1. Amendments to remove items from your application that were 
not grown/made and not brought to Market , or add items that 

were grown/made and were not noted on the Vendor’s application, 
will be done by the Market Manager at this time.  

The Market Manager will be accompanied by a Third Party Verifier 
with a background in farming on this visit as well as one 

representative from the Farmers Market Advisory Board. (Bios on 
the potential verifiers are listed below.)The owner and 
representative listed on the Vendor’s application must be 

present at this visit. During this visit, The Market Manager, 
the Third Party Verifier, & the Farmers Market Advisory Board 
representative complete an Audit Report that will be signed by 
all present parties. If a Vendor chooses to contest the audit 

Vendor audit protocol 

75



ATTACHMENT C

and not sign off on it, they can submit the Contesting the Audit 
form provided by the Market Manager and the Farmers Market 

Advisory Board will review their case.  

Please note that the following information may be requested at 
this time: documentation of previous land use, input records/
product labels, storage records, sales records, & shipping 

records.  

STEP 3: RESULTS 

Within 48 Hours, the Market Manager will submit an Audit Summary 
to the DDA. The DDA will then contact the Vendor on whether or 
not they passed the Vendor Audit. If a Vendor is selling items 
at the Market, but there is no evidence of them during the 

Physical Visit, the Vendor will be removed from the Market for 
the remainder of the season.  

Vendors may appeal this decision to the Farmers Market Advisory 
Board at their monthly meeting.  

76



	
	
Memorandum	

	
Hardy	Garage	Generator	RFP	-	Update	
The	RFP	for	the	generators	that	will	replace	the	battery	backup	system	at	Hardy	was	issued	on	
March	1,	2016.		City	Engineering	and	Neilus	Engineering	are	assisting	with	bid	package	materials,	
walkthroughs,	and	technical	clarifications.		The	bids	are	due	March	24th,	and	City	Engineering	
will	plan	to	include	the	recommendation	on	the	City	Commission’s	April	4th	agenda.	
	
Bike	Racks	and	Bike	Shelters	–	Update	
Old	Town	
We	are	fine	tuning	the	details,	but	plan	to	begin	installation	of	a	covered	bike	shelter	on	the	
west	side	of	the	Old	Town	Garage	in	the	gravel	area	near	the	south	entrance/exit.		The	shelter	
will	cover	an	eight	loop	rack.			
Hall	Street	
Now	that	we	are	moving	towards	springtime,	Northwoods	should	be	able	to	schedule	the	install	
of	the	additional	inverted	Us	in	front	of	the	Warehouse	Marketplace.	
On-street	Racks	
We	are	preparing	for	the	rollout	of	our	on-street	bike	rack	program	beginning	May	1st.		We	are	
continuing	placement	of	six	loop	racks	in	the	100	and	200	blocks	of	E	Front	Street	in	front	of	
Grand	Traverse	Distillery,	Plamondon	Shoes,	Pangea’s	Pizza	Pub	and	the	Camera	Shop.		A	four	
loop	rack	is	planned	for	the	200	block	of	Lake	Avenue	near	The	Parlor	and	Rare	Bird.		
Bike	Parking	Requests	
We	have	two,	three	loop	racks	that	may	be	used	for	our	seasonal	on-street	program	or	
permanently	placed	off-street,	and	seven	single	inverted	Us	that	can	be	placed	permanently	off-
street.		Please	let	us	know	if	you	have	suggestions,	preferences	or	recommendations	as	to	
locations	have	limited	bike	parking	or	would	be	an	ideal	location	to	increase	bike	parking	so	we	
may	incorporate	placement	in	our	May	1st	rollout.	
	
Violations	Bureau	Buildout	–	Update	
Environment	Architects	will	have	their	documentation	to	City	Engineering	this	week.		We	are	
tentatively	planning	to	have	the	bid	issued	March	27th	which	would	allow	for	an	end	of	
April/beginning	of	May	bid	opening.		A	recommendation	will	be	submitted	t	
	

	

To:	 Rob	Bacigalupi,	DDA	Executive	Director	

From:	 Nicole	VanNess,	Parking	Administrator	

Date:	 March	12,	2016	

Re:	 Parking	Services	Updates	–	March	2016	

77



	
	
Memorandum	
Residential	Parking	Public	Input	Sessions	
On	March	1st,	our	first	input	session	took	place	with	Central	Neighborhood.		Attendees	were	
able	to	share	their	parking	issues	and	identified	contributing	factors.		The	meeting	was	
successful	in	being	able	to	gather	area	specific	information,	and	open	the	door	for	feedback	
from	residents	and	businesses.		Upcoming	sessions	have	been	scheduled	with	Boardman	
Neighborhood	on	Tuesday,	April	5th,	Old	Towne	Neighborhood	on	Wednesday,	April	6th,	and	
Thursday,	April	14th	for	a	to	be	determined	neighborhood.	
	
Civic	Square	Visioning	–	Planning	
A	civic	square	has	been	a	capital	improvement	on	the	master	plan	for	many	years.		Parking	
Services	is	working	with	City	Planning	to	confirm	dates	when	parking	Lot	O	can	be	utilized	by	the	
public	as	a	park.		We	will	convert	all	parking	spaces	on	the	east	side	of	the	island	towards	Cass	
Street	into	a	park	like	setting	with	trees,	shrubs,	and	tables.		The	goal	is	to	create	a	space	that	
the	public	may	visualize	as	a	civic	square	and	obtain	public	input.		We	are	tentatively	planning	
dates	within	the	first	two	weeks	of	June.				
	
	
		
	

	

78



79



80



81


